LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
Tuesday, 17 June, 1986.

Time — 2:00 p.m.
OPENING PRAYER by Madam Speaker.

MADAM SPEAKER, Hon. M. Phillips: Presenting
Petitions . . . Reading and Receiving Petitions . . .
Presenting Reports by Standing and Special
Committees . . . Ministerial Statements and Tabling
of Reports. . . Notices of Motion . . . Introduction of
Bills . . .

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

MADAM SPEAKER: Before we proceed to Oral
Questions, may | direction the attention of honourable
members to the gallery where we have 45 students
from Grade 9 from the Westgate Mennonite Collegiate.
The students are under the direction of Mr. J. Pankratz,
Mr. Bachmeier and Mr. Wiens, and under the direction
of Miss Wiebe. The school is located in the constituency
of the Honourable Member for Wolseley.

We have 60 students from Grade 9 from the Lockport
Junior High School. The students are under the direction
of Mrs. Rachael Elinger. The school is located in the
constituency of the Honourable First Minister.

We have 17 students from Grade 9 from the Birch
River School. The students are under the direction of
Mr. Bruce Johnston, and the school is located in the
constituency of the Honourable Member for Swan River.

On behalf of all the members, | would like to welcome
you all to the Legislature this afternoon.

ORAL QUESTIONS

Canadian Indemnity Company -
relocation
MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the
Opposition.

MR. G. FILMON: Thank you, Madam Speaker. My
question is for the Premier.

| understand that he has been informed today of the
decision of the Canadian Indemnity Company to move
its head office functions from Winnipeg to Toronto, and
given that this is a company that has operated for 91
years in Winnipeg and that this decision will result in
19 people being offered relocation in Toronto and
another 41 employees being terminated, has the
Premier instructed his Minister of Economic Security
and Employment Services to become involved in
assisting and retraining and redeploying these people
to find new employment in Manitoba?
MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable First Minister.
HON. H. PAWLEY: Madam Speaker, | met with the
representatives of Canadian Indemnity this morning at
approximately 11 o’clock in which they advised of the
intention to move the head office as a result of a merger
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that had taken place with Dominion. They also indicated
at the same time that they were putting together a
package that would provide for assistance insofar as
those employees who would be adversely affected,
Madam Speaker, in respect to the changes that would
take place.

Madam Speaker, of course the province will be
prepared to look into any and all means in a way by
which we can facilitate the loss of employment,
employment problems within training, etc. The existing
programs of government, once requested by the
company or once the company is ready as a resuilt of
the completion of their putting together their package,
to ask for cooperation.

MR. G. FILMON: Madam Speaker, given that this is
the third insurance company to move its head office
from Winnipeg during the term of this government, this
government’s administration, | wonder if the Premier
has initiated or would he initiate studies by his
government to look into the taxation and other policies
under Manitoba’s administration to see whether we
can stop the outflow of jobs to other jurisdictions as
a result of head offices being moved.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Madam Speaker, I'm not going to
engage in the kind of stunts that the Leader of the
Opposition might wish to engage in because | could
refer to Swift and the Winnipeg Tribune and ask why
there weren't inquiries undertaken then.

The president of the Canadian Indemnity Co. advised
me this morning by way of a letter that in no way should
this action be construed as a negative comment upon
the Manitoba business environment.

We intend to remain very active in the province. Our
motivation is based solely on corporate decisions which
seek to protect the company’s position in the —
(Interjection) — market.

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.
The Honourable the First Minister.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Madam Speaker, the president did
indicate that the action was a result of a merger which
took place when Dominion acquired the assets of
Canadian Indemnity which brought about the need for
rationalization of the company’s operations in Toronto
because of the acquisition of Canadian Indemnity by
the larger Dominion company holdings.

MR. G. FILMON: Madam Speaker, | accept what the
Premier is saying as being perhaps a sincereintent on
the part of the president of the company, but this the
third insurance company to move its head office.

MADAM SPEAKER: Does the Honourable Leader of
the Opposition have a question?

MR. G. FILMON: Yes, Madam Speaker. My question
to the Premier is: would he undertake studies to try
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the tenders that were rejected? Did they have any
experience in erecting and building gates in other
jurisdictions other than North America?

HON. J. COWAN: . . . certainly we’ll be pleased to
provide the type of information that is normally provided
about tenders of this sort. | will take that question as
notice along with the others and will respond to the
Leader of the Opposition in due course.

Manitoba Hydro -
gag orders on officials

MADAM SPEAKER:
Lakeside.

The Honourable Member for

MR. H. ENNS: Madam Speaker, a question to the First
Minister.

Would the First Minister consider asking the chairman
of Manitoba Hydro to rescind the recently imposed gag
or muzzle order on officials of Manitoba Hydro so that
Manitobans in general and the media, not excluded,
can ask the kind of questions that we ought to be
asking now, particularly where billions of dollars are
involved, where the tendering system is being
circumvented, and I’'m sure many Manitobans want to
have certain questions asked?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable First Minister.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Madam Speaker, | thought the
committee hearings that were just completed in which
there was the fullest of information provided in the
committee — | may be wrong but | thought that to be
the case — so | find mystifying the — (Interjection) —
question posed . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.

| would hope that honourable members would be as
quiet to hear the answers as they are to hear the
question.

The Honourable First Minister.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Madam Speaker, | find it mystifying
because my information is that the President of
Manitoba Hydro provided — (Interjection) — the . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.
. . fullest of information before

HON. H. PAWLEY:
the committee.

MR. H. ENNS: Madam Speaker, my specific
supplementary question is the gag order was imposed
a few days ago after the public hearings with Manitoba
Hydro. I'm simply asking the First Minister whether he
will consider asking his chairman of Manitoba Hydro
to rescind that order so we can ask questions of
importance at this time?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Madam Speaker, | still fail to know
what the member is speaking of. The Minister responds
in this Chamber in respect to matters pertaining to
Manitoba Hydro — or the Acting Minister — the
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president of Manitoba Hydro, because there can only
be one spokesman. You can't have 15,000
spokespersons who respond to questions that relate
to Manitoba Hydro as well if inquiries are made.

MR. H. ENNS: Madam Speaker, a final — (Interjection)
— supplementary.

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.
The Honourable Member for Lakeside would like to
ask a final suppimentary. Could he please have quiet?

MR. H. ENNS: Thank you. Madam Speaker, my final
supplementary question to the First Minister.

If I ask Bill Morham of the CBC to call the appropriate
officer at Manitoba Hydro about recent contracts
awarded, will he get an answer from the appropriate
official, or will he be told that, no, Mr. Marc Eliesen
has said nobody at Hydro can speak about any of these
subject matters? That's the gag order that I'm asking
to be rescinded.

SOME HONOURABLE MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.
The Honourable First Minister.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Madam Speaker, knowing the
reputation of Mr. Morham of the CBC, he would know
enough to go to the person who is accountable and
is responsible. That is the president of Manitoba Hydro,
and not go to someone who he might not obtain
accurate or complete information from.

SOME HONOURABLE MEMBERS: Oh, oh!
MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.

Lakeshore Metis Cooperative Ltd.-
interest free loan

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for St.
Norbert has the floor.

MR. G. MERCIER: Thank you, Madam Speaker, | have
a question for the Minister of Co-op Development.

The Co-op Loan and Guarantee Board Report for
1984-85 indicates an interest-free loan of $70,000 was
made to the Lakeshore Metis Land Improvement Co-
op Ltd. Would the Minister indicate whether there are
any other interest-free loans given by the board, and
whether the Minister approved of this loan in any way,
shape or form?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Co-
op Development.

HON. J. COWAN: There are no other interest-free loans
currently given by the Loans and Loans Guarantee
Board, but it is a policy which | think can work to the
benefit of cooperatives attempting to start out under
adverse circumstances.

| know the members opposite want to see new
cooperatives develop in this province. The Lakeshore
Metis Cooperative was one that is providing an example,
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look at the possibility of maybe replacing some of his
staff so that we have proper programs being developed
that are not going to be impinging on the rights of
Manitobans?

HON. L. HARAPIAK: Madam Speaker, | would like to
say to the House that | totally reject the premise of
the Member for Emerson that the matters are illegal.
Those policies are being considered by the courts, and
when the courts rule, if there is indication that any
member of the departmental staff has been involved
in some legal impropriety, | will deal with it at that time.
But | think it is a gross misrepresentation, again by
the Member for Emerson, to suggest that departmental
staff are dealing with it incorrectly.

MR. A. DRIEDGER: | would like to ask the same
Minister then if he would consider and check some of
the memos that have been passing from his directorate
to the regional managers regarding these kinds of
things?

HON. L. HARAPIAK: Madam Speaker, that comment
is so vague that | would have difficulty, but | would be
pleased to check into any matter that he would table.
Please do. Please do. | would ask that they be tabled.

Manitoba Indian Affairs -
funding cutbacks

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Thompson.

MR. S. ASHTON: Thank you, Madam Speaker. My
question is to the Minister responsible for Native Affairs.
A recent audit . . .

SOME HONOURABLE MEMBERS: Oh, oh!
MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.

MR. S. ASHTON:
Speaker.

A recent audit of the Manitoba Indian Affairs Branch
has uncovered serious cutbacks and underfunding of
reserves in Manitoba.

My question to the Minister of Native Affairs is as
to whether he has been in contact with Manitoba Indian
Bands and the Federal Government in regard to this
very serious matter of funding cuts?

| believe | have the floor, Madam

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister
responsible for Native Affairs.

HON. E. HARPER: Thank you, Madam Speaker.

| have been in touch with a few chiefs, and also |
did talk to David Crombie and | mentioned to him about
the audit. He mentioned that he is having serious
problems in Manitoba in respect to the audit that was
done. This confrontation took place in passing on a
different matter, | believe it was on Thursday. He
indicated to me, he had a serious problem in respect
to the special audit that was conducted.

| may say that | give credit to the Brotherhood of
Indian Nations that have made presentations to the
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standing committee on Indian Affairs, and it has brought
out some light that there were cutbacks made to the
Indian programs that were instructed by the Minister
of Indian Affairs, himself, that there would be no
cutbacks of existing programs. What we have found
out is that they were cutbacks at the direction of the
Minister, himself; and also the audit indicated that the
facts that were presented to Parliament were
misleading. | think the Minister of Indian Affairs has a
serious problem in terms of the departmental staff or
the management of staff that are presenting the facts
to that department in Parliament, which is a serious
breach. | know | would say that the Minister of Indian
Affairs get a handle on his department.

MR. S. ASHTON: Just on a brief supplementary,
Madam Speaker.

In view of the fact that the Department of Indian
Affairs has announced its intention of cutting back its
staffing by 50 percent and moving that to the . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please. A supplementary
does not need a preamble. Does the honourable
member have a supplementary?

MR. S. ASHTON: Madam Speaker, | would like to ask
whether the Minister will review the plans of the Indian
Affairs Department to cut back its staff and 50 percent
transfer to the reserves to ensure that . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Order, order please. A question
must be within the administrative competence of a
Minister. Does the honourable member have a
supplementary?

MR. S. ASHTON: Madam Speaker, | have addressed
a question to the Minister responsible for Native Affairs,
and this certainly relates to the concerns of Native
people and that is, to whether they will get the full
benefits of the planned transfer.

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please, order please. That
question is out of order.

The Honourable Member for Brandon West.

The Honourable Member for Thompson on a point
of order.

MR. S. ASHTON: Could | have the opportunity to
rephrase the question, please?

MADAM SPEAKER: The honourable member can
briefly rephrase a supplementary if it's within order and
in the administrative competence of the Minister.

MR. S. ASHTON: Madam Speaker, I'm asking the
Minister of Native Affairs whether he will be in touch
with the Federal Minister of Indian Affairs and
Manitoban Indian Bands to ensure that they receive
the full benefits of the transfer of Indian Affairs staff
to Native Bands in Manitoba.

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please. That question is a
repetition of your original question.

A.E. McKenzie Company Ltd.-
tabling of Annual Report

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Brandon West.
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MR. J. McCRAE: Madam Speaker, my question is
directed to the Acting Minister responsible for A.E.
McKenzie Company Limited.

In view of the fact that on Thursday the Standing
Committee on Economic Development will be
considering the Annual Report of A.E. McKenzie
Company Limited, when will the annual report be made
available to members of this House?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Finance.

HON. E. KOSTYRA: Thank you, Madam Speaker. |
understand that report will be tabled tomorrow in the
House.

Payroll tax

HON. E. KOSTYRA: While 'm on my feet, Madam
Speaker, I'd like to respond to a question that | took
as notice or was taken as notice by my Acting Minister
on May 22, questions from the Member for Morris
regarding — the specific question was related to —
were there any conditions under which the Minister of
members of the staff of the Department of Finance
have discretion with respect to, as he referred to it,
the payroll tax.

The situation is that there is no discretion by the
Department of Finance or the Minister of Finance with
respect to exercising any discretion with respect to the
health and post-secondary education tax levy.

There was however, Madam Speaker, in the 1982
Budget Address the following statement: This is a quote
from the Budget on Page 102: *‘The province will also
safeguard against the potential negative effects of this
levy on businesses experiencing significant financial
difficulty by rebating the costs of the levy for all
businesses eligible for assistance under the Manitoba
Interest Rate Relief Program.” That was done under
the Interest Rate Relief Program for those eligible
applicants qualifying for a rebate of the actual amount
of the levy. That was done through the respective
programs and through the Departments of Agriculture
and Business Development and Tourism.

The member also asked for a list of those companies,
and | can table copies of that for the member.

Education funding formula

MR. J. McCRAE: Madam Speaker, | have a new
question to be directed to the Minister of Education.
| would like to take this opportunity, Madam Speaker,
to thank the Minister of Education for meeting with
Manitoba’s low-cost school divisions this morning. The
reports that I've heard are that the Minister gave the
representatives there a good hearing.

Madam Speaker, in view of the fact that earlier in
this Session the Minister of Education made the
statement that the school divisions are being dealt with
fairly — and in particular he singled out the Brandon
School Division — and after his meeting this morning
with representatives of low-cost school divisions in this
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province, does the Minister now recognize that there
is a problem requiring his attention?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Education.

HON. J. STORIE: Thank you, Madam Speaker.

| appreciate the thanks for meeting with low-cost
school divisions; it isn't necessary. | see that as part
of my role as Minister, and I'm more than happy to
meet with them or any other group who have concerns
with respect to educational matters.

| should indicate | hope that the individuals who
attended that session of many school divisions from
across, particularly, Southwestern Manitoba were not
left with the impression that there is any simple means
for redressing concerns that they raised.

Madam Speaker, | hope that | left the representatives
of those divisions with the clear understanding that the
government support to education programs cannot deal
with all of the perceived problems that are out there.
The fact of the matter is that an increase to one school
division, unless we're prepared to grant a much more
significant portion of provincial spending to education,
means a reduction in other areas.

| do recognize that there they have a legitimate
concern. | indicated that it wasn’'t going to be easy to
address that concern. That doesn’t mean that we aren’t
obliged to review at any time when a concern is
addressed, and | undertook to take a second look and
to review the implications of the support program.

| also undertook to review any implications changes
would have for other school divisions and | note that,
while there were 11 or 12 or 13 school divisions in
attendance at the meeting, there were some 45 who
were not at the meeting, including special revenue
district divisions who, by and large — (Interjection) —
pardon? | was talking about special districts. Madam
Speaker, there are two sides to the issue.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Brandon West with a supplementary.

MR. J. McCRAE: Madam Speaker, while recognizing
that there is a legitimate concern, the Minister has not
gone that one step further to say that he would be . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Does the honourable member
have a supplementary?

MR. J. McCRAE: Yes, | do, Madam Speaker, if you'll
allow me to put it.

MADAM SPEAKER: With no preamble?

MR. J. McCRAE: Will the Minister bring in a funding
regime that treats all divisions fairly, and that everyone
understands and can be explained to municipal councils
and ratepayers, so that long-range planning can be
undertaken?

HON. J. STORIE: Madam Speaker, | believe that it is
the intention of the government to treat all school
divisions in a fair manner. | point out to the member
opposite, as | did to those in the meeting, that fair is
often in the eyes of the beholder.
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MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.

MR. J. McRAE: Madam Speaker, would you allow me
to make my point?

MADAM SPEAKER: Does the honourable member
have a point of order?

MR. J. McRAE: | have a point of order. Madam Speaker,
you just rose to ask that order be restored to this
House. There’s a much better chance of order being
restored if a member of this House who has maligned
every member on this side . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please. | have taken that
point of order under consideration. We will discuss it
at the time | bring it back to the House. We are now
on Orders of the Day.

HOUSE BUSINESS

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Government
House Leader.

HON. J. COWAN: Madam Speaker, on a matter of
House business first, it is my understanding that the
Economic Development Committee finished its review
of CEDF, Moose Lake Loggers, and Channel Area
Loggers this morning and on this Thursday, will be
considering A.E. McKenzie Seeds, the report of.

On Tuesday and Thursday next, through agreement
with the Opposition House Leader, the committee will
be considering the report of Flyer, so members of that
committee can so note.

Having said that, Madam Speaker, | would move that
Madam Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House
resolve itself into a committee to consider of the Supply
to be granted to Her Majesty, Estimates for Agriculture
taking place in the Chamber; Estimates for Highways
and Transportation taking place in the Committee
Room, seconded by the Minister of Municipal Affairs.

MOTION presented and carried and the House
resolved itself into a Committee to consider of the
Supply to be granted to Her Majesty with the
Honourable Member for Burrows in the Chair for the
Department of Agriculture, and the Honourable Member
for Kildonan in the Chair for the Department of Highways
and Transportation.

CONCURRENT COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY

SUPPLY - HIGHWAYS AND
TRANSPORTATION

MR. CHAIRMAN, M. Dolin: Committee, come to order.
We are dealing on Page 97, Resolution No. 95, 6. Driver
Vehicle and Licensing. The Minister has a statement
he’d like to make.

The Minister of Highways.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes, yesterday when we completed
the discussions at 10 o’clock, we had just passed the
members a summary of financial implications of the
revised agreement with MPIC for cost-sharing, and |
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think it is relatively self-explanatory. But | did want to
correct one impression left on the record, that it may
have given the impression that the Special Warrant for
$2,128,200 was passed November 7, 1985. It was
authorized — that Special Warrant — by Cabinet
minute, as | stated yesterday, November 7, 1985.
However, the Special Warrant itself was not passed
until February 7, 1986.

| think this is important information for the Member
for Pembina who had reflected that this wasn’t shown
in the quarterly statement at the end of December. It
wouldn’t have been, obviously, because it had not been
passed until February 7, and it’'s important that the
member — before he starts chastising the government
for misplacing the way it reports information — that
he would be aware the implications were not quite the
same as he left them on the record yesterday, and how
| left them on the record, by not correcting the statement
as to the exact date of the Special Warrant. So it was
February 7, 1986.

| should mention, as well, that discussion of Special
Warrants is covered under Public Accounts in detail,
and | think the Member for Pembina was aware, and
that was also referred to yesterday. We were talking
about the matter of whether Special Warrants should
be included in the budget, and | said finance is
responsible for the structure, format, and so on, but
Public Accounts is the appropriate place to discuss
Special Warrants.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Minnedosa.

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes, | just have one or two questions
left in this department. Last year we questioned the
Minister on a newspaper article — it appeared about
the time we were getting into Estimates — about one
of his former aides being appointed as administrative
officer with the Licence Suspension Appeal Board. |
guess | can keep that until we get under boards and
committees.

MR. CHAIRMAN: [t would be more appropriate.
MR. D. BLAKE: The next item might be . . .
HON. J. PLOHMAN: Thanks for giving notice anyways.

MR. D. BLAKE: . . . a little better for that. Seeing as
| brought it up, maybe the Minister of Urban Affairs
might be here because he stated this thing as a ‘‘blatant
political appointment,”” Manitoba Government
Employees’ Association President Gary Doer said . . .

HON. J. PLOHMAN: He wasn’'t the Minister then.

MR. D. BLAKE: We’ll get into that and we’ll find out
if that gentleman is still around.

HON. H. PLOHMAN: | was as annoyed as you were,
Dave.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 6.(a)(1) - the Member from Turtle
Mountain.

MR. D. ROCAN: Yes, what are the criteria for an
Autopac per person getting an Autopacagency? | have
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consultations, and then a White Paper issued, we
passed a number of amendments to The Highway Traffic
Act last year. Most of these have been proclaimed,
particularly those dealing with enforcement, fee
increases, or fines that could be levied by the Transport
Board.

We are also considering at the present time the
enacting of the maximum rate proposal that was put
forward in our legislation last year. That has not, at the
present time, been enacted, or proclaimed, | should
say, because we want to do further consultations as
to exactly how it would take place, as we promised
during last year’s consultations. But it does provide for
maximum rates being set by the board for intra-
provincial trucking and provisions for minimum rates
if there’s predatory pricing that may be taking place.

We also haven’t put in place the owner-operator
provisions pending further discussions and
consultations with labour and with the industry on
whether there should be aratio, or what kind of formula
should be in place.

In addition to that, we have proclaimed the sections
dealing with the farm trucks and making it legal to haul
for neighbours for compensation, but not at profit, in
other words, to help your neighbour out. So that
reflected the representations that were made at the
hearings last year. | hope that it's a workable solution.
We haven’t had an awful lot of complaints in the first
year on that.

So, in addition to that, the board has undertaken a
number of changes that were contained in the White
Paper revising their rules of procedure to expedite the
hearing process. They have really brought down the
backlog there. | guess, because of the uncertainty a
bit in the regulatory environment at the present time,
not as many are applying, or not as many are intervening
in the hearings. So the hearings have cleared up quite
a bit and they're really very short now — a month to
six weeks backlog as opposed to nine months a little
over a year ago. There has been a significant benefit
there for trucking companies, or prospective trucking
companies, trying to get into the business. They do
not have to wait as long as they had to previously.

They’ve also put in place procedures that will enable
pre-hearings, or a study of the evidence first, before
a hearing is granted, to determine whether a hearing
is necessary, and to eliminate frivolous interventions,
where this was the case many times in the past; so
that seems to be working.

We are, as well, one of the first provinces to expand
the list of designated commodities, which are really
deregulated commodities. There was a rather
substantial increase, as of March 15th, | believe it took
effect, in the number of commodities that could be
transported without having to have PSV authority. So
that has, | think, freed-up the system a lot.

In addition to that, we’re looking at the potential of
regionalizing authorities, so that there’s more
competition in a region. A lot of trucking companies
are opposed to it because they see that others will be
able to compete with them. It hasn’t been acted on,
but it was put out there to get some views and some
thinking of, not only the trucking industry itself, but
also shippers to get some feedback. There may be
some further progress made on that in the future, but
the idea was there that there would be provisions for
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a number of PSV authorities in an area to compete
with each other in servicing the small communities in
a region, rather than having to go all the way to Winnipeg
with things and then brought out to another community
that’s only a few miles away. It’s very costly, inefficient
and it doesn’t make sense. So that is an area that may
have to be moved on in the future.

So | think that a number of the changes that the
Transport Board has made have really freed-up the
system and made it more accessible and responsive,
without deregulating. We still retain the public need
and convenience tests, which involves proving that it
is not in the public interest to allow another trucking
firm into the business formally.

That is something that is being proposed to be
changed at the federal level, particularly, with the
“freedom to move” proposals, which are really saying
that, for extra-provincial trucking, we should go to a
shared onus or reverse onus process, where it is up
to the intervener to prove, to a certain extent, that it
would harm the public interest if that person was
granted an authority. That makes it much different than
the person who is applying to have the full onus of
proof that it would be in the public interests for him
to be indeed serving those communities.

So that is a switch in the onus, and that is proposed
by the Federal Government to be in place January 1,
1988, for a period of three years. We would like to see
that five years and we've made that known, very clearly,
because we believe that there should be a transitional
period before moving and, if moving, to a fitness test
only, which is what the Federal Government is thinking
about now and which the shipping industries definitely
want, because they think it's going to lower their costs.

Now we are concerned about the implications on the
trucking industry and particularly if those rules are
applied, not only for Canadian firms with each other,
but also insofar as American firms coming into Canada
and perhaps taking over a lot of the lucrative runs and
perhaps buying up trucking firms here and moving out
their headquarters. And Winnipeg, of course, having
9 of Canada’s 15 largest trucking firms, we have a lot
at stake in that whole issue.

So we want to move cautiously and we’re saying to
the Federal Government, give it five years under this
reverse onus, still have a hearing process, so you can
have some checks and balances into who gets into the
trucking business; and during that five year period do
an exhaustive analysis of the impact and evaluation,
assess and determine who the losers in the system
are, ensure that you have your safety code in place,
ensure adequate enforcement, ensure that the Federal
Government is paying for some of that enforcement
because after all it's their jurisdiction — trucking,
transportation — that they’ve delegated to the
provinces in trucking. We are currently paying for the
enforcement ourselves.

We are introducing this year, as members have seen,
the new Commercial Vehicle Testing Program for safety
reasons so that commercial vehicles will have to be
tested for their equipment for each year. We're saying
that there has to be a safety code that will also include
hours of work legislation, so that drivers will not be
forced to be on the road for hours and hours just to
try to make a go of it, especially owner-operators.

So with all those things there’s a lot of change there
and we think that there should be this transitional period
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of reverse onus for five years; no automatic sunsetting
of that provision; have the studies, the evaluations which
we are committed to doing through CCMTA and then
make an assessment as to whether to move to fitness
only. At the same time, there can be negotiations going
on with the U.S. Government to gain some recognition
from them, that Manitoba and Canadian truckers may
need some protection under this system, a bilateral
trade in trucking agreement, which doesn’t exist at the
present time. We're saying that's necessary. There has
to be that recognition by the Americans.

| think we have a consistent, uniform approach in
Manitoba from the trucking industry, from labour, but
we do not have the shippers, at least the big shippers,
coming on side on this. They’re anxious to go full tilt
and we'’re saying no, don't fall into the same pitfalls
necessarily that the U.S. did. We're not a mere image
of the U.S,, let’s take some time to assess and move
slowly but still move forward. That's kind of where it’s
all at.

| understand now that by June 25 or so, the Federal
Government will be tabling, Mazankowski will be tabling
the new national Transportation Act revisions in the
Federal Parliament. We've had input along the way,
consultations, and we want to commend them for that;
however, we’re still not completely satisfied from
Manitoba’s point of view that there will be enough
safeguards built in to those new revisions to ensure
that we're protected here in Manitoba.

Alberta, Saskatchewan, and B.C. really have quite
a different situation than we do here in Manitoba,
although Saskatchewan is coming very closely into the
same position we are. But they don’t have the amount
of presence of trucking headquarters that we have in
Winnipeg, so we have more at stake.

MR. D. BLAKE: Well, 'm glad the Minister brought up
the backlog. That was going to be my next question.

Just on a point of interest, are the Americans now
levying a charge for Canadian truckers crossing the
border?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: We understand that charge is to
take effect July 6. The Customs Office recently has
notified firms. We've come across a copy of the
correspondence. | don’t know that we’ve been sent any
directly as a government, but it would indicate that
there will be a $5 charge for each trip for anyone
entering the U.S., including American carriers. So it is
not a discriminatory tariff, but it will be an additional
cost for trucking into the U.S. of $5 per truckload or
$100 for an annual permit with no limitations.

So that is something that we're assessing right now
and determining whether there’s a reciprocal kind of
charge assessed by the Federal Government in any
way, shape or form at the present time, whether there
should be. But that’s something that took place without
consultation and will increase the costs of trucking by
$100 per year, and is something that is just dropped
on us.

MR. D. BLAKE: On the trucking franchise, one of the
things that’s affecting my area and, I'm sure, other
areas, the larger trucking firms have moved in in some
areas and have just made it so difficult for the smaller

local trucker that, after spending $10,000 or $20,000
on lawyers fighting the big boys, so to speak, they've
just given up and sold out.

The evidence is there already, that the service is not
as personalized and as good as it was with the local
trucker. We're having meat shipments arrive without
the benefit of reefer trucks, 24 hours a truck, not
accepting it, meat’s going back. The service is not what
it was. So that’s something that we have to be very
mindful of, | think, when they’re granting licences or
enlarging franchises, because the giants don't really
worry about the little shopkeeper who may be taking
a very small quantity.

| wanted to mention too the temporary permits being
granted for wide loads or special loads. I've talked to
the Minister before on granting permits for wider loads
without the necessity of two escort vehicles. That's
presenting quite a hardship to one operator in my area,
who brings in a bin from the west. They can travel
Saskatchewan and Alberta but, when he hits the
Manitoba border, he has to have two escort vehicles
to come an extra 80 to 100 miles into Manitoba. He’s
been applying for permits, and they haven’'t been
granted. It's a 16-foot load and 15 feet is the maximum.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: First of all, | just wanted to make
a comment on the small rural truckers. That's exactly
why we want to retain the right of the province to
regulate according to provincial policies to protect the
small and captive shippers in the rural areas of the
province. | think that principle has been accepted at
the federal level for intra-provincial trucking
undertakings. But if we were to move to a fitness only,
of course the thing would be thrown wide open, and
anybody would be in there.

So there’s that balance, and there’s that move to
go towards throwing it wide open. But the whole idea
of this regional kind of proposal was to allow for some
hub-and-spoke type of delivery services being set up
in areas that would be rationalized, make more sense
than the current system that we have which, as you
say, has resulted in some of the smaller truckers just
selling out to the big guys, Gardewine or whatever it
might be, just servicing the whole area. So the idea of
that regional trucking service or project or proposal
was to provide for greater opportunity for those small
truckers in the areas, to give them greater access to
additional markets.

Insofar as these permits for these wide loads, we
had made some special provisions and changes after
meeting with a company from — what was it, Winkler?
— Altona. They had met with us, and they have some
special dollies that they have with a number of additional
wheels. | don't know if it's 12 wheels across. Because
they then, when they go off the edge of the pavement,
there wouldn’t be this abrupt movement of this wide
load, it was felt that they could get by with one escort
vehicle.

However, in the case of the bins, it was quite a
different situation in terms of the equipment they were
using. | looked at that very carefully and wanted to see
if we could be a little more lenient there, and | would
like to look at it further to see whether there are some
other options. But that’s why it is maintained, the
regulation was maintained that two escort vehicles
would be required.
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We did make it a little looser for the mobile homes,
16-footers, because of the kind of equipment they were
using, and it was also consistent with what
Saskatchewan and Alberta, | think, were doing in that
area, a special kind of dolly that was available. But
people moving those bins had trailers or low beds or
high beds, whatever the case may be, that did not have
the wheels that were continuous across and, therefore,
it would be abrupt movement having to swing out over
the pavement edge and things like that. So it was felt
that it wasn’t as safe.

MR. D. BLAKE: | had a couple more, Mr. Chairman.
They just escaped me for a minute. I'm getting mixed
up with the construction program.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We're on 7.(a), Motor Transport
Board.

MR. D. BLAKE: We can cover the waterfront here
maybe and get it passed.

| just have a question on cabs. We can wait till we
get down there a little bit.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We’'ll deal with this section by section.
We’re on Motor Transport Board.
The Member for Pembina.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, the Minister
mentioned in his remarks to questions from my
colleague that he believes there should be changes in
the hours of operation, that drivers should be permitted
to run presumably for a week. Could the Minister
indicate what this proposal to the Federal Government
would be in that regard?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | have proposed that there be
hours of work legislation. We have not stated how long
those precisely should be, and how much time there
should be in rest periods and so on and how many
total hours in a week. That's something that we're
working out. Perhaps we have some additional
information.

So we didn’t give the precise details, where we said
this is the way it should be. What we did say though
is that there should be an enforceable hours of work
legislation in place across Canada that is uniform, and
it should be enforced. So the CCMTA Committee has
been requested to bring in a report for the September
meeting of the Council of Transport Ministers on this
issue, that we then can assess and make revisions to
and then hopefully it would be accepted by all of the
Ministers from across Canada.

MR. D. ORCHARD: The Minister is saying that all he
wants is some legislation but he doesn’t have any idea
what the legislation should be.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: That's the Member for Pembina’s
words. We haven't worked out a definitive position into
whether it should be 10 hours a day, or so many hours
a week, or what it should be.

The fact is that we want to undertake further
discussions with staff and also await the CCMT report,
which is being put forward. They will have to consider
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the workability of any provisions that are put in place,
the enforceability of them. We are open on that, as
yet. However, realize that there is a need to have
enforceable regulations, for safety reasons.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, those aren’'t my
words. Those are the Minister’s words, twice repeated
now. He wants legislation and he doesn’t know what
he wants in the legislation. He hasn’t made a suggestion
as to hours; it's still under review. Can the Minister
indicate why he's come to the conclusion that this is
needed, if he hasn’t got any of what he wants to change
it to?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: The Member for Pembina is quite
welcome to offer suggestions if he has such a keen
mind that has all of this figured out and knows exactly
what the best system would be. It is obviously a very
complicated area that has led to a safety code being
established in the United States after quite some time,
but not one that has been solved in Canada.

We're saying that because there will be a tendency
to cut costs, and | think this is something that the
Member for Pembina should have no trouble agreeing
with and recognizing, as has been true in the airline
industry where there’s been a rash of accidents, the
tendency is, under deregulation. | agree with those who
write with that message, certainly, and there’s a lot of
articles in trucking magazines, in transportation
magazines now that would outline that concern, that
safety will tend to be sacrificed under a deregulated
environment, because there’s only so many places you
can cut costs under an extremely competitive system.

That's why we feel it's absolutely necessary to have
basic requirements for equipment, inspection, to ensure
that it is kept up in a safe manner, brakes and lights
and everything else. We also feel it's important that
those people working in the industry have certain
guidelines governing how many hours they can be
working and under what conditions, so that there's
some protection there to keep them from being unduly
exploited to the extent that it may be unsafe to have
them on the roads.

These are all kinds of things that | feel personally
are very important when moving to a deregulated
environment in the trucking industry, as well as in all
of the transportation areas.

MR. D. ORCHARD: Mr. Chairman, the Minister can't
have it both ways, then. If he thinks it's very important
and if he thinks it's a saety issue, if he thinks it's an
issue of exploitation of workers, if he believes in all
those things, then | find it hard to understand or
comprehend why he can't tell us this afternoon what
his proposal for change would be, given all the concerns
that he’s mentioned.

| think what we see here, Mr. Chairman, if | can be
so blunt, is that he is a Minister being led around by
some opinions voiced by various union leaders who
have always requested this. It's in their interest to have
stricter controls, more drivers and fewer hours, and it
discriminates against independent operators — there’s
no question about that — if you bring in those kinds
of legislation.

Then, of course, the independent operators are
private-enterprise exemplified and that’s something this
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HON. J. PLOHMAN: That's the intent of the legislation,
Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Minnedosa.

MR. D. BLAKE: On that same item, Mr. Chairman, it's
notlegal now to have, say, a crew cab with a fifth wheel
on it and a boat and motor behind that, it's not legal?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: That's right, not legal in Manitoba.
How many years have you been using it?

MR. D. BLAKE: I'd better not pursue that question
any further, Mr. Chairman. | guess I've never been
stopped yet.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 7.(a).

MR. D. BLAKE: On board hearings under the Highway
Traffic Board . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it 7.(a)—pass, or are we still on
7.(a)?

MR. D. BLAKE: Well, if you want to do it line by line,
I’'m finished on Motor Transport Board.

MR. CHAIRMAN: | think we should. In this case, they're
reasonably discreet.

MR. D. BLAKE: Perhaps my colleagues have a question
on that.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 7.(a)—pass; 7.(af1)—pass; 7.(af2)—
pass.

7.(b) Highway Traffic Board — the Member for
Minnedosa.

MR. D. BLAKE: On the board hearings, I'm getting
the odd trucker in my area who’s maybe trying to
benefit, get the benefit of a backhaul and had one or
two infractions about hauling illegal loads that had been
called before the board. With the strained financial
situation in the agricultural community these days, |
trust the board will be listening to some of these appeals
with a sympathetic ear, and then | guess the same type,
they may be applying for a PSV if they can’t get away
with hauling it the way they have been doing, but there
seems to be quite a few occasions where they could
haul a return load and make their trucking a little more
economical.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | believe the member is talking
about farmers with F-plated trucks?

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: The provisions thereare the same
as always, that they can haul for their neighbours.
However, if they want to make money at it, in other
words, get into the trucking business, and not only
recover their out-of-pocket costs in helping their
neighbour, then they have to get a PSV licence which
does cost more money. But because of the designated
commodities, now the expansion of the list, there are

all kinds of opportunities for them to get that backhaul
as the member mentioned.

The fact is though that, if they have a backhaul for
themselves, there is no problem; if they are charging
someone else for hauling it back, above and beyond
the costs of transporting it, then of course they are in
a situation . . .

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes, this is where | think the difficulty
comes in. They are hauling a legitimate load out and
an offer comes up to make a buck on the way back
and they can't justify it as hauling it for their neighbour.
If people apply for a PSVR, are they reasonably easy
to pick up, or is there a pretty severe limit on how
many get them?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | don't believe there is a limit —
and correct me if I'm wrong — on this area for PSV
licences. It's specific PSV authorities to do certain
movements within certain areas that require a hearing.
As far as the licences, they just have to make
application, and | believe there may be a test of fit,
willing and able — some questions to answer about
whether they are financially able to carry out the service.

MR. D. BLAKE: We have a lot of grain that goes out
to, say, Alberta, places like that, and they may have
difficulty with a PSV licence interfering with some other
franchise. So it may not be that easy for them to get
a PSV licence, | suppose.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: No, it's easier than it used to be
and, as a matter of fact, we're dealing with the licence,
as opposed to the authority. It's not interfering as long
as they are hauling designated commodities. The
designated commodities were accepted by all three
western provinces during joint hearings. So, if they're
hauling any of those goods now, which is quite an
expanded list — | don’t have it right here, but | could
read off a whole pile of different commodities now that
are known as designated commodities — for which
you do not need a specific PSV authority which is again
the hard one to get. | think the member is referring to
that one. He says there may be some difficulty about
infringing on somebody else’s franchise. This is not the
case. If you're dealing with the PSV licence —
(Interjection) — that's right.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Springfield.

MR. G. ROCH: Yes, | read where the Chairman of the
Manitoba Traffic Safety Committee said it hopes to
introduce new legislation which will reduce motorcycle
casualties. | take it, that means yourself as Minister,
would be introducing that legislation.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, first of all | just want to
clarify — the Transport Board was passed and we were
just answering questions on the Transport Board. But
anyway now we're on the Traffic Board, this is not the
Highway Safety . . .

MR. G. ROCH: Oh, I'm sorry, | thought it came under
the Traffic Board . . .

HON. J. PLOHMAN: No, it's not the same as the
Highway Safety Committee which is not an official



Tuesday, 17 June, 1986

committee that is under the jurisdiction of the Minister
of Highways, particularly. That committee reports to
the Minister responsible for the Manitoba Public
Insurance Corporation. But | might add this person
who did make the comments apparently was misquoted
on that and | have not received a clarification as to
what he exactly said.

| think he was referring to amendments and changes
that had been made in previous years, as opposed to
upcoming changes to legislation that involve
motorcycles, because there are no plans currently, as
we have discussed in detail. There are currently studies
being undertaken, statistics being compiled, and we're
certainly not considering at this time introducing
changes untilwe have a chance to assess what’s taken
place in the past.

MR. G. ROCH: This was misquoted then.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes. A complete misquote is what
would be accurate.

MR. G. ROCH: For clarification then, if it's a misquote,
then there’s no point in pursuing it, but if such legislation
were to be introduced, it would be from your department
or from the Minister responsible for MPIC.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Mr. Chairman, if there were
changes in The Highway Traffic Act, obviously that
comes under the Minister’s responsibility for Highways
and Transportation, and it is under The Highway Traffic
Act that the safety legislation was previously passed.

MR. G. ROCH: This committee itself is a committee
for reporting to the Minister responsible for MPIC.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes, and it’s an advisory committee
only. It does not have any statutory authority. It is made
up of members from police departments and from the
safety council, the medical profession, legal, Highways
Department, driver licensing, City of Winnipeg, MPIC.
All of these come together to discuss ways of making
our highways safer and making recommendations to
the Ministers.

MR. G. ROCH: Basically the only power you have is
to make recommendations on highway safety.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: That's right, on highway safety.

MR. G. ROCH: Okay, | have another question which
| believe falls under the Highway Traffic Board. It’s in
regard to speed zones. | just wonder why, in certain
areas, there is quite a variance in the limited number
of miles where you’ll go from 70 kilometres, to 90
kilometres, back to 70, 50, 70, back to 90. I’'m referring
especially in an area on provincial roads 213 and 212
from 206 to Cooks Creek. There’s no villages there or
anything and some of the residents are wondering why
there’s not more consistency. There may be a good
reason for it, | don’t know.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, Mr. Chairman, | would have
to have the details of that specific situation, then get
a report as to why the speed limits are as they are
there.
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If the municipalities wish to have them changed, they
could send in a resolution to the Traffic Board, and
this would then be considered for a change. So there’s
a method of making changes in those speed limits, if
it's confusing to motorists.

MR. G. ROCH: So the proper channels then for those
people might be to go through their local council to
make a request? | could understand in the area of
Cooks Creek itself, which is a very small community,
to have it 50 kilometres; but there seems to be a wide
variance around there.

Okay, I'll advise the people to go to their local council.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes, and just to clarify, the local
councils will obviously tell them that they haven't
authority to make the change itself per se, but the
council can't if it's a provincial road, but they can pass
a resolution sending it to the Traffic Board, asking for
this to be changed.

MR. G. ROCH: Right, | am aware of that.
MR. CHAIRMAN: 7.(b)1)—the Member for Minnedosa.

MR. D. BLAKE: While we're on that, we were discussing
the 100 kilometre versus 90. | don’t know whether we
covered that or left it for this section before.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | think we did cover it, Mr.
Chairman. | outlined the proposal, the number of
kilometres that the department was recommending and
that over a period of time these would be increased
through hearings of the Traffic Board.

MR. D. BLAKE: Are those hearings upcoming?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, there’'s been a number that
have taken place already, Mr. Chairman. There’s been
changes since last year — since this was made — on
Highway 5 to the Saskatchewan border, from Dauphin.
There’s been a number on the list on Highway 83 up
near Swan River, so it's ongoing.

MR. D. BLAKE: | realize that. I'm thinking of No. 10
with the tourist season coming on. There’'s a pretty
heavy flow of traffic there and it’s pretty confusing
coming off 16, which is 100, and turning north and
you're back on 80, or 90 rather.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: We've asked as a result of the
initial questions the other day for an updated report
on the status of where we're at on implementation of
that. There are a number that we've just listed.

Highway 12 was also one that was added, so the
numbers have been increased to 100 kilometres, and
| think | mentioned the other day as well that it would
have to meet certain specificationsin terms of shoulder
width.

But we should have a report available within a week
or two to provide additional information on the status
of that and | can do that to the member individually
or in the House, in answer to questions.

MR. D. BLAKE: On Highway 83, from where it joins
the Yellowhead at Russell, it's 90 kilometres to Swan
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River and then from there on, it's 100; and ccming the
other way it's a little confusing to people. Thev come
off a 100 kilometre stretch through to 90 ana then 5
down, it’s still 100.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 7.(b)(1)—pass; 7.(b)(2)—pass.
7.(c) License Suspension Appeal Board—the Member
for Minnedosa.

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes, maybe here the Minister could
tell me now where Mr. Shewchuk is now working. Is
he still with the License Suspension Appeal Board, or
is that a term contract?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Mr. Chairman, there was a
competition held, | believe some six months ago as we
had indicated last year after the individual was moved
on a term basis, temporary — Ken Shewchuk — there
was a competition held at the License Suspension
Appeal Board and another individual was selected as
the candidate and is now working in that position. |
don’t know where Mr. Shewchuk is working right now.
I’'m not sure. We are not sure.

MR. D. BLAKE: | wonder if the Minister could give us
the makeup of the License Suspension Appeal Board
now and what is their workload with the new
regulations?

HON. J. PLOHMAN:
question.

I'm sorry, | missed part of that

MR. D.BLAKE: | just wanted the makeup of the License
Suspension Appeal Board and what is the workload
like now with the new regulations, where there’'s no
work permits issued for three months?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | don’t know that they've felt a
dramatic change yet. | see that the License Suspension
Appeal Board Chairman is sitting in the back and his
secretary, so they may want to come up and whisper
in somebody’'s ear as to whether they've seen a big
difference as a result of the federal legislation on
drinking and driving in December. It was enacted last
December, so we've only got a certain few number of
months to go by it, but, overall, the number of cases
was up from 4,044 in'84-85, the number of applications
processed in'84-85 from 4,044 to 4,293 this past year.
So there was a slight increase up to the March 31 fiscal
year as compared to the previous year.

From April to June this year, compared to last year,
I'm informed that we're down about 250 applications.
Say, if that's half the year, that’s about 2,000, so you're
looking at 10 percent.

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes, | realize the federal legislation
and I'm not trying to take away from the seriousness
of the offence, but | am wondering if there is any —
what'’s the word I'm looking for — any move to make
a provision in there for — and I’'m thinking of a hired
man, say on a farm operating farm machinery — should
he be suspended for three months with no driving
privilege at all? He’'s unable to operate the farm
machinery and he’s really of no value to that employer.
So does he throw himself on the welfare system? I'm
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wondering if there is any move to provide some type
of limited working permit for, say machinery, if it's his
livelihood.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, Mr. Chairman, that is
precisely the point that we made on a number of
occasions to the Federal Government when they passed
this legislation, and they ignored it. The fact is that we
have a system that is responsive in the province and
recognizes the need for licences for work purposes
through the License Suspension Appeal Board, but
under the new act there’s a prohibition from driving
for three months where the License Suspension Appeal
Board can have no impact.

We have made that case to Mr. Crosbie, but through
the Attorney General; we have also made that case
through Mr. Mazankowski through Transportation. |
raised it at the last meeting of the Council of Ministers
in Vancouver, specifically that issue. He said that he
would pass it along to Mr. Crosbie, but we have not
seen any reflection of that situation here in Manitoba.

Not all provinces are the same; | don't believe all of
themhave License Suspension Appeal Boards that work
the similar way that ours does, but | agree that there’s
really a double penalty or more for those certain people
and for others there isn’t. So it isn't consistent, and
| felt that there should be that flexibility even though,
as the member has stated, it is a very serious offence
but in terms of livelihood it's important.

| think that the member should attempt to make that
kind of representation to his colleagues in Ottawa —
| say that very seriously — to make that as strongly
and as often as he can.

MR. D. BLAKE: It’s creating some severe hardships
in one or two cases that have been brought to my
attention. | said, well, there is really nothing that can
be done about it but possibly they’ll maybe become
a little more sympathetic to the work conditions that
some people are under. I'm thinking of a long-range
trucker. Mind you, he shouldn’t be in that condition to
start with but, as you say, it's a considerable penalty.
He would be earning his living under a considerable
handicap even with the probationary period. The
workload is no different because it just staves it off
for three months, | guess, so they still come to the
Appeal Board.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 7.(c)1)—pass; 7.(c)(2)—pass.
7.(d) Taxicab Board — the Member from Minnedosa.

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes, | am just looking at some of the
reports, Mr. Chairman, of the complaints that come in
on taxicabs and the city being not in good condition,
dirty and uncourteousdrivers and things of that nature.

| wonder if the Minister might tell us what his
experience has been, if he’s had those comments or
complaints.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, I've been made aware, Mr.
Chairman, of these concerns and | know that the Taxicab
Board is very concerned about them. | think they feel
that perhaps it has been a little bit exaggerated, at
least not that it's not a real problem at times but that
it's kind of a broad-brush treatment of the taxicab
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industry in the City of Winnipeg, and it has given perhaps
the taxicab industry a bad name, smeared them a bit
with this. It’s made it very difficult, unfair in a way is
how they feel, not that it isn’t unfounded though under
certain circumstances.

So they have been taking steps to meet with owners
and individuals to impress the importance in meeting
with the community of the Chamber of Commerce.
There was a committee set up and made up of a number
of interested citizens that has also been providing
representation on this issue to ensure that hotel
associations are involved and Chambers of Commerce.
We have received letters from | think a couple of groups,
perhaps a hotel in the city and | believe an individual,
not an awful lot of complaints but it did find its way
into the media. It is something that the Taxicab Board
has addressed and | believe that they are taking steps.

I’'m not certain whether they have done anything in
terms of any training or information. | am informed
there are new examinations that will be coming forward
to be ready for September that will emphasize this
whole area of keeping the cabs in a presentable
condition for the public and the impact that this has
on the public and tourists and so on.

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes, under this board, the handi-van,
or the vehicles used to transport the handicapped, is
now under the Taxi Board — June 30?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Strictly speaking, they are not
under the jurisdiction. The regulation is to take effect
under the jurisdiction of the Taxicab Board on June
30 of this year; in other words, two weeks.

MR. D. BLAKE: And this decision was made in full
consultation with the League for the Physically
Handicapped and all other interested parties. The
Taxicab Board and everybody has agreed with one
exception, | suppose. So these regulations are going
to be satisfactory and fair to the handicapped?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, | think they're going to be
fairer than the unregulated system that was there
before.

It's interesting. We talk about regulation and
deregulation, and here is a case where we're moving
into regulating where in so many aspects of the
transportation industry they’re moving the other way;
but there were no safeguards in terms of standards
for safety, standards for fares, on level of service, this
was all over the map, and it was felt that users of the
system, as well, should have somewhere to go to place
their complaints and concerns that they may have. So
we feel that it is a constructive move; it certainly hasn’t
been easy. It was to be done a year ago but was put
off because wefelt it was veryimportant to have proper
consultation with the industry who initially didn’t want
it, but then it came around to feeling that it might be
a good thing for them as well and the users of the
system being represented by their organizations, such
as the League and the Canadian Paraplegic Association,
seniors’ groups and others.

" There's been general agreement now on the kinds
of fares that should be assessed, additional fares for
special services on the safety requirements, some
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recognition that these have to be perhaps phased in
over a period of time, that it was not economically
possible for some of the cab companies to afford, the
handicapped, mobility disadvantaged taxi companies,
to afford the kinds of provisions and equipment; so it
was an effort to look at all of these considerations and
then move towards a better system, a safer system
and one that was economical for the users of the system.

We haven't got to the stage where the social services
departments are plugged into it in such a way that
there are offering it as a social service, as | think Theresa
Ducharme would like to see. We're continuing to meet
with her and then seeing whether it's possible, under
other departments over a period of time, to making
this even more accessible to those who can't afford
it. It's not something that’s really an ensured service.

MR. D. BLAKE: The only subsidization would be
through someone on social service assistance. With the
assistance allowance they're getting, they would provide
their own transportation out of that. There’s no other

HON. J. PLOHMAN: There’s some transportation
allowances, | believe, under the social services but no
special provisions for the use of special requirements
under this, yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 7.(d)X1)—pass; 7.(d)(2)—pass.

Resolution 96: Resolved that there be granted to
Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $1,189,600 for
Highways and Transportation Boards and
Committees, for the fiscal year ending the 31st of March,
1987—pass.

We are now on Resolution 97, Expenditures Related
to Capital, Page 99.

MR. D. BLAKE: This is where everybody wants
questions now.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Mr. Chairman, | wonder whether
the member, he may have a number of questions himself
but it may be possible to work through (b), (c), and (d)
or something. If there’s a number of people who aren’t
here . . .

MR. D. BLAKE: | think they’ll be jumping in so if we
just maybe do it all and then pass the whole thing.
We'll be jumping around quite a bit on it.

Mr. Chairman, | had a call just today and | haven't
had a chance to look at the map even yet. Highway
206 has been reconstructed in the — | guess it's the
highway leading to Landmark — there’s a newly built
road or reconstructed road in there. | wonder what
property was acquired there.

| haven’t had a look at the operation, but apparently
there’s about 10 houses in there and the way the road
has been curved in, it comes very, very close to some
of the houses. In fact, | think one of them is about 40
feet now off the road and there’s some concern with
heavy truck traffic maybe shaking the house pretty
badly. | just wondered why they would come so close
to that particular property without maybe expropriating
it and relocating it.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | don’'t know who the individual
is. We haven’t had any special . . .
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MR. D. BLAKE: It's a Roland Nault | think that owns
it. There’'s one house that’s extremely close, Roland
Nault.

A MEMBER: How'’s that spelt?

MR. D. BLAKE: N-a-u-I-t. It's Nault to us Anglos but
it’s Nault to the Francophones.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: The spelling is N-E-A-U-L-T? The
first name is Roland Neault, so we’'ll look into that.

| can just tell you generally though, the members,
that was a very tight squeeze in there and his residence
is on both sides I'm informed. There's curves to cut
over to an intersection on one end and relocation on
the other end and an effort, of course, to be as flexible
as possible in terms of the taking of the right-of-way
to not dislocate people any more than had to be done.

Of course, they would have received visitations,
discussions and negotiated and | don’t recall receiving
any special complaints or saying they weren’'t being
fairly treated or requesting that there be another look
at what we're doing there, as to how much land is being
required. They would have had an opportunity to put
forward perhaps a request that they wanted the
residents to be relocated or to be bought out or
whatever. These things can be discussed. Now, whether
he raised those, | don’t know, at the time.

MR. D. BLAKE: Yes, that’'s my immediate reaction. If
it's that close to the property, obviously, it should have
been expropriated and relocated in some way. There'’s
always two sides to the story, when you're not familiar
with the area.

The Member for Springside may be a little more
familiar with it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Springfield.

MR. G. ROCH: I'm just wondering what was the original
reason, the original rationale behind because this is
new construction that we're talking about. There’s a
few feet between where 206 goes into Landmark and
206 went to No. 1, actually were separated. What was
the original reason for building this?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Wecould get the planning minutes,
the considerations, the alteratives that were looked at
over a period of time to try and solve the problems of
the intersections there. The idea was to try to yield one
intersection instead of two. Therefore, relocation was
deemed to be the best way to join up 206 with No. 1,
with 207; so, they were looked at a number of
alternatives of how to do it, and there was consultation,
| believe, in the area with the municipalities and with
the MLA at that time, the department locally and the
department central office, and eventually decided that
was the best route.

MR. G. ROCH: You say there was consultation with
the residents of the area at that time?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | mentioned the municipal officials.
| didn’t mention the residents themselves as to what
the plan should be. They would have been obviously
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consulted after the expropriation process began,
consulted with regard to the amount of remuneration
they should get for their land. | don’t know that they
were consulted before as to whether it was best to do
that or the other.

MR. G. ROCH: What's going to happen with that portion
of the road which was 206 from where the new 206
will join to 207? Will it remain as a municipal road?
Will it be abandoned?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: There are a lot of planning
objectives. A major one was the amount of traffic that
was using 207 at No. 1 Highway, going through Lorette
and down south to Landmark or other places. They
were using 207, instead of using No. 1. The idea here
was to improve that intersection with No. 1 so that
there would be more use, and improve the intersection
of No. 206 with 207 where it intersected so that there
would be more use of 206 right through to No. 1, and
take some of the traffic pressure off 207 and the speed
restrictions that were through Lorette and the
intersection of 207 with No. 1. That was one of the
reasons why that was changed, so that there wouldn’t
be that jog if people didn’t feel like using it and,
therefore, would stay away from that road.

MR. G. ROCH: If | understand you correctly, the
objective was to encourage people to go down No. 1,
straight down 206 to Landmark or wherever they're
going, with the idea of, instead of making a little jog,
go straight through.

| would take it then from you said, that’s going to
be all hardtop then.

HON. J. PLOHMAN:
Chairman.

It's planned for hardtop, Mr.

MR. G. ROCH: Why is everything sitting idle right now?
There’s no work proceeding on it right at this moment
unless they've started, you know, in the last couple
days.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Let me find out, Mr. Chairman,
what is in the program this year. The member maybe
already knows what’s in the program with regard to
this section of road but, if it's in the program to finish
and carry over, they will finish it. Nobody’s told them
to not finish it.

MR. G. ROCH: No, but I'm just wondering, at this time
of the year, why it’'s not proceeding.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Mr. Chairman, if conditions
warrant, the grading would be completed and,
depending on the schedule of the contractor who had
some work to do there yet, he may have other
commitments and hadn’t gotten out to this section.
I'm not sure. The member would obviously be more
aware of whether it's wet there or whether there were
any difficulties in getting started there earlier.

The program allows for that completion, and then
additional gravel and calcium treatment, dust treatment
for this coming year. It’s never the practice to put the
pavement on right away, so obviously it wouldn't be
considered until next year or the year after.
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MR. G. ROCH: So if | understand correctly, that will
be completed this summer?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes.

MR. G. ROCH: Everything but the black-topping.

| had another question related to that project and
it may be not to do with this question, but there have
been some local merchants who have had some
problems with one of the sub-contractors with unpaid
bills. Do they have any recourse through the
department? Do they have to go to the general
contractor, or what kind of recourse would they have?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: There is a holdback provision and,
if any of the sub-contractors indicate to the department
that they haven’t got their money after a period of
some 30 days or . . .

MR. G. ROCH: Oh no, no. Pardon me, Mr. Chairman,
what | said was that one of the sub-contractors has
got some outstanding bills to local merchants. I’'m just
wondering do they have any . . .

HON. J. PLOHMAN: We don’t have direct involvement
with the sub-contractors at the present time, and there
wouldn’t be any recourse. The contractor is paid this
money. He pays the sub-contractors, and it’s too far
down the line for the department to be holding, because
we don’t have a contract with the sub-contractors per
se. We have a contract with the contractor. He is
responsible for paying out the money to his sub-
contractors who are responsible for paying their bills.
So on that basis, the current system does not allow
for the department to hold back anything from the sub-
contractor.

MR. G. ROCH: So their only recourse would be just,
| guess, civil or other proceedings against the sub-
contractor.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Small claims or whatever.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Minnedosa.

MR. D. BLAKE: There’s a road, I’'m not just too sure
— what's being done in the Stead area, would it be
304? What construction is going on up in that area?
| had a call from someone who said there's a road
being built there, and he’s not too sure where it's going.
It doesn’t seem to go anywhere. | thought that one had
been built through the former Minister’s land at Selkirk,
but apparently there’'s another one that’'s going
nowhere.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Mr. Chairman, this one is obviously
a case where we had to look at some relocation of
304 through Stead, where there were a lot of problems
with the grade there through the peat area, smoke and
burning areas in the past, and also very dangerous
narrow grade shoulders. It was felt, rather than
upgrading it on its present location and jogging through
up close to Powerview there, that it was better instead
to take it right across to Highway 59, from one of the
junctions further north and go straight west, across
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through the Belair Provincial Forest, instead of around
the bottom of it. So what we've done is started the
construction from Highway 59. The first seven miles
was let in last year’s program. It hasn't been completed.
We will consider letting the second contractor join it
up from where it hits the railway track there, throughout
the provincial forest, the CN line, right across to where
304 is currently east, right straight east, at the jog.

MR. D. BLAKE: From the first jog, up from the 304?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, there’s Stead. There’s a jog
that goes east and there’s a jog up.

MR. D. BLAKE: Straight across from there?
HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes.
MR. D. BLAKE: Right south to 597

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Right. So it's straight west from
there. It's relocation of that section and it is currently
under way. Because the whole section was not
contracted in one contract, it will seem to people, who
may want to be curious and decide to go down there
and take a look, that it goes to nowhere, because at
the present time it does go nowhere. It's currently being
constructed and the second portion has not been let.
We intend to do that, perhaps, in the pre-tender
program, or next year’s program, so that it will be
completed.

There’s some property to acquire as well there. The
member can understand that through the forest, no
private property had to be obtained, and that's why
construction started on that end.

MR. D. BLAKE: It will just go through a couple miles
north of Stead, then?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes, a few miles north of Stead.
The intention, then, is to make a new connection into
Stead from the north, straight down.

MR. D. BLAKE: That's pretty well all provincial park?
HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes, right on the boundary there.

MR. D. BLAKE: That may take a lot of the traffic out
of that Stead area. It might not disturb the birds as
much in the fall, Mr. Deputy Minister; it may be helpful.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: That's what’s behind this.

MR. D. BLAKE: That's a couple of them out of the
way. The Newdale access, could you tell me what's
happening? That was in the plan and | don't know
whether there’s anything happening there, that access
off 16 to the Village of Newdale. It's a pretty dangerous
cutoff there and there was, | believe, in the proposal,
plans to do something on that.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: |t certainly rings a bell.

MR. D. BLAKE: | don’t know whether it was in the
proposed . . . yes, Newdale access, in the projects
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previously programmed. | just wondered what was
happening on it.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, there are intersection
improvements. It’s in there; it’s in the carry-over. The
intention is to complete that this year, providing there’s
no problems . . .

MR. D. BLAKE: You're just going to put a little curve
in there to come back out onto the highway at a better
angle?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: That's supposed to be approved.
| don’t what the date is for tendering. It's in the program
and | think the intention was that it will be done this
year. It was a carry-over from last year. So if there are
no problems with acquisition — | hope there wouldn’t
be, otherwise it shouldn’t be in here for improvements
if there was still acquisiton to do. It doesn’t indicate
that. | can’t tell you why it was not done last year but
the fact is, there’s about $140 million worth of projects
that are approved, 1.6 times the amount of expenditure,
so in any given year, all projects that are programmed
cannot be done and some of them are carried over.

It may be done this summer, then. | don’t know what
the projected tendering date is at the present and no
one has that information right now.

MR. D. BLAKE: The Stonewall cutoff — would it be
67?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Yes.

MR. D. BLAKE: There's some concrete work being
done. Would that be the junction of the Stonewall cutoff
there on the No. 7? | just wondered what's being done
there Is there concrete work being poured on that
intersection? There's an irate citizen out there who has
called the Premier and everybody else. Apparently
there’s two days work and it's taken 10 or 14 days to
complete. He's worrying about the staff not working
hard enough on it.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Could | have clarification? The
member mentioned 67. Is he talking about the junction
of the Perimeter with 6, or?

MR. D. BLAKE: No, it would be the junction of the
Fort Garry Road, where it comes across the bog, as
they call it, and joins up with No. 7. | assume that that's
the junction he was referring to. It would be the junction
of No. 7 and 67.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | don't know whether it's some
patching, or whatever, at Highway 67 and No. 7 from
the east is what the member is saying he thinks it is?

MR. D. BLAKE: It's got to be on 7 because he's talking
about the danger of the truck traffic. They're down to
one lane and then they're doing the other lane and it's
dragged on for an abnormal length of time. That's his
complaint, that it should have been done in a couple
of days, to allow the truck traffic through. But apparently
it dragged on quite a bit.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: If that’'s on the four-land section
in the vicinity of 67 and 7, we’'ll find out what's going
on.
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MR. D. BLAKE: That seems to be, from what he
described to me, as the place for it.

I don’t want to getinto this one maybeuntil aterwards,
because it might take a little while. | want to go into
the Plessis Road thing.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Turtle Mountain.

MR. D. ROCAN: | wonder if the Minister can tell us if
anything is being done on the 244 between No. 2 and
the Town of Notre Dame.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: The question was what, Mr.
Chairman?

MR. D. ROCAN: Is there anything going to be done?
South on 2.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: | didn’t get the intersection.

MR. D. ROCAN: The road, at 244 but south of 2, to
the Town of Notre Dame.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: 244 south of 2 to Notre Dame.
What's the number of that road? 244.

| understand, Mr. Chairman, there is nothing in the
program at the present time. Maybe the member would
like to enlighten us as to the importance of doing
something there, but there is nothing in that area a1
the present time.

MR. D. ROCAN: |t's just that this road here is in
deplorable shape. It's just that, you know, the potholes,
the road has deteriorated, you don’t even want to drive
there with your car any more, it's that badly shot up.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Well, we have, Mr. Chairman, that
noted on 244, and we’ll take a look at whether we
should be beginning a program of upgrading on that
road, but it is not currently planned. There may be
some revisions or some initial plans from the district
on that, but we'd have to check with them first as to
what they are proposing.

MR. D. ROCAN: On the 242, from the Town of Somerset
to the junction of 245 — and, as the Minister already
knows, on the 245, from Notre Dame going west, it's
blacktopped already, but it goes to nowhere. Is there
anything in the plans of connecting up to the 242,
blacktopping the 242?

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Mr. Chairman, from 245 to 23,
that section of 242?

I'll just check the program, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, the budget obviously doesn’t indicate
that we can. When we come back, we can have some
additional information as to what the plans are on that
section of road.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The hour being 4:30, we interrupt
the proceedings for Private Members’ Hour and return
at 8:00 p.m.

SUPPLY — AGRICULTURE

MR. CHAIRMAN, C. Santos: This section of the
Committee of Supply has been considering the budget
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Estimates of the Department of Agriculture. We are in
Item No. 4.(d)(2) Soils and Crops Branch, Other
Expenditures.

The Honourable Minister of Agriculture.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, | wish to provide for
honourable members — during our discussion last
night, we spoke about the cost of agricultural chemicals,
as faced by farmers, and | wish to table for the
honourable members — a copy of our brief paper on
the cost of agricultural chemicals that was presented
to the Ministerial Conference in St. Johns,
Newfoundland in July of 1985 so that honourable
members would be aware of it.

As well, | want to provide some information for the
honourable members on lupins and lathyrus, Mr.
Chairman. Manitoba Agriculture has selected two lines
of sweet lupins that have good promise for commercial
production in certain areas of the province.

The lupin is an annual legume, high-protein feed crop
which can be produced on sandy soil, because it has
good tolerance to drought. The lupin has the following
important features. The seed has a protein content
varying between 30 percent and 45 percent. This is
considerably higher than the faba bean, grass pea and
field pea. The crop holds good potential as a source
of protein for feeding to monogastric animals,
particularly swine and poultry. The lupin is very drought-
tolerant, allowing for production on light soils in areas
of the province where annual legume crops, such as,
faba beans cannot be successfully grown.

The crop requires 115 to 125 days to reach maturity,
but has good frost tolerance in the seedling stage,
allowing for early planting. The lupin readily forms good
nodulation when inoculated with a specific inoculant.
Lupin production can be handled with the same
equipment used in cereal grain production, therefore
requiring no special equipment. The current seed
supplies of the two strains of lupins are quite small,
and two years of seed increase will be necessary before
large field production demonstrations can be initiated.
Some laboratory tests with feeding of rats have been
conducted at the University of Manitoba. Additional
feeding trials will be undertaken by the livestock group.

Information regarding the lathyrus sativus, which is
commonly known as the grass pea, AgricultureCanada
Research Station at Morden has developed a low-
alkaloid strain of the grass pea. The development of
this strain holds good promise for the introduction of
a new annual legume crop in Manitoba.

The grass pea has the following important features.
The seed has a protein content of 26 percent to 28
percent, 2 percent higher than field peas. It's
approximate maturity is 100 to 110 days. It grows to
the height of about 60 centimetres, two to two-and-a-
half feet tall. It is very drought-tolerant, and equals field
peas in frost tolerance. Its nitrogen-fixing capability
appears to be higher than field peas.

The low-alkaloid varieties of the grass pea are
expected to be suitable for human, as well as animal
consumption. It is anticipated that the low-alkaloid
variety developed at the Morden station will be licensed
in 1987. This will mean that only small investigational

976

plots can be grown in 1986 to establish suitable cultural
practices. Simultaneously, seed supplies can be
increased.

When supplies are adequate, larger field-scale
demonstration sites can be established to demonstrate
the production of this new annual legume crop. Tests
for grass peas as human food and feeding trials for
annual animal feed in the form of forage and grain will
also be required.

Mr. Chairman, as well, | have asked staff and they're
being sent down to provide copies for my honourable
friends of the . . . They can be photostated right now
so that for the next section, the Farm and Rural
Development Division, we'll have an overview presented
to the honourable members of that division of the major
areas under this division. If the Page could take this
copy and make about half-a-dozen copies for members,
then they’ll have it when we reach the next section.

Mr. Chairman, | think, rather than put all this additional
information about demonstrations and summary of all
the horticulture demonstrations by Manitoba Agriculture
and the University of Manitoba and the Morden
Research Station, we have a varying list. | would table
this so it would be copied, and copies can be distributed
to honourable members for their records. | won’t put
it into the record. It will be there for them. We can
present it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Ste. Rose.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: ['d like to thank the Minister for
providing that additional information for us. | assume
that, as we go on into Policy and Economics, he could
perhaps table some additional information at that point,
the fact being that many of us on this side who are
new to this House and new to this process in asking
questions, without having background information,
sometimes I'm sure we prolong the Session more than
is possibly necessary in the eyes of some people probing
to find certain answers that might be provided to us.
If the Minister could give us additional information up
front our questions could be a lot more concise and
perhaps a lot more productive.

An example, | guess, of where | would ask under
Other Expenditures, we're still on Line 2, is this where
the Minister’'s prepared to answer questions on the
Value-Added Crops Agreement, or would he sooner
have that carried forward to the Federal-Provincial
Agreement section?

HON. B. URUSKIE: Mr. Chairman, the same Assistant
Deputy Minister will be back for that one. It is actually
at the end, under the Item 7., Federal-Provincial
Agreements, but we've beeninto it and out of it. | leave
it to my honourable friends, if they want to have the
questions now or they want to leave it till we reach
that item, | leave it to them.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Under the Soils and Crops
Branch, under the staff breakdown — if | could ask
the Minister’s indulgence for a moment, | realize that
probably this question could have been asked under
Salaries. All the information that | seek here is a little
bit more breakdown on the 54 members of staff that
are involved there. Under Other Expenditures, | assume
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that no salary is involved there, but I've asked the
Minister’s indulgence if he could give us a little further
breakdown on that staff complement.

HON. B. URUSKI: The member is speaking about the
Soils and Crops Branch.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Yes.

HON. B. URUSKI: Okay, in the way that we have it
presented in our own budgets, and | can give him
generally the fundingthatis related in each area. We've
got it broken down as a combination of Salary and
Other Expenditures, totalling the $3.4 million. That's
how we have it related in our own presentation, in our
own detailed notes.

So | have given the honourable member from the
records, the staffing, I'll go through the whole thing,
and | will give him the breakdown in each area, even
though there is . . .

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Perhaps this is the type of
information that it might be more productive for all of
us if the breakdown of the staff complement were
information that could be tabled ahead of time and
then we could avoid going into this line of questioning.
| wonder if the Minister would consider that.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, I'm not rejecting it
at all. The only thing is, I'm prepared to give the
honourable member what | have in my own notes in
terms of the record. | would have no more information
available at this time other than unless we went into
a much more detailed presentation of what is other
expenditures, what does it relate to. We have not
historically gone into that detail in terms of presentation.

We've had to always go back if there were some
specific questions in a specific area, saying, | want to
know how much travelling or whatever this branch did,
we would have to go back and get it because we do
not, in terms of our own Estimates, get into that detail.

There is a process, and perhaps | should explain to
the honourable members that by about July of this year
a process of starting to project Estimates for the next
fiscal year begins and the budgets that are presently
in each are allocated to each branch. Those branch
managers start to determine what kind of budgetary
requests they are prepared to put in. That whole request
covers off that branches, all its incidental expenses. In
other words, if there is paper, there is telephone, there
is vehicles, all those expendituresrelated to that branch
would be in this global budget that we would have. So
that, for example, in Soils and Crops, the $3,400,000
would be the entire staff, the projected salary increases,
any budgetary requirements for vehicles, telephones,
office supplies and travelling that that branch may do.
They are given a global budget to operate under, and
unless therearechecks and balances in terms of where
the executive, in fact, after setting the policy in the
direction in consultation with the Minister, deems that
there needs to be a change in direction or added
discretion, then the requests come back to the
executive.

But, generally speaking, once that budget is approved
in a global sense, travel is approved by the executive
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in terms of out-of-province travel; those kinds of
requests do come into the executive and approved.
But all that money that is in this is allocated for all
those expenditures.

MR. E. CONNERY: | would just like to ask the Minister,
when we were here, we've been talking about the input
costs. Will the Minister monitor the price or value cost
of nitrogen fertilizer? | don’'t know if the Minister is
aware that Trans-Canada Pipelines will be changing
somewhat to where they can become a common carrier
of natural gas and that individuals, large users, can
then go out and bargain for large volumes of natural
gas.

Simplot fertilizers at Brandon would be one who could
go to Alberta and purchase a large volume of natural
gas and get it transported through Trans-Canada
Pipelines and that should really lower the cost of
nitrogen fertilizer.

We want to make sure that these savings are passed
on to the farmer at this time. | don’t know what
mechanism the Minister might have, but | think if we
could try to relate between the cost of gas to the fertilizer
companies and the cost of fertilizer to the farmer.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, we have and continue
to monitor retail pricing of fertilizers to the farm
community to see whether there may be some large
variations in terms of prices being paid by farmers,
and in response to complaints and/or allegations about,
for example, fertilizer that is Canadian goes south of
the border and comes back allegedly at a lower price
than it went over there. We've had those kinds of
allegations in the past, and we have done monitoring
and sample pricing on both sides of the border as well
to try and confirm or at least determine whether in fact
those allegations are accurate and see what happens.

The issue that the honourable member raises, I'll
have to investigate that further just to see what actually
is occurring in that area. I'm not aware of any more
information than the honourable member has and the
implications that it may have for us. But we do and
will continue to monitor pricing and respond to concerns
that may be raised in various parts of the province as
to the retailing of fertilizer to farmers.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: This is a general question and
perhaps if the Minister wants to answer it in another
section, that'll be his prerogative.

In terms of establishing budgets within the various
departments and because I'm also interested in
Government Services, | wonder if he could explain what
the relationship, or if in fact there is one, with
Government Services regarding cars, materials of that
nature.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, staff may correct me
if 'm wrong, in terms of office equipment, there is a
central purchasing bureau of Government Services
which all departments apply for the purchase and
leasing of equipment and office equipment from that
bureau, but we would budget those amounts within our
own budget for that whole area. When it comes to
vehicles, thereis a charge-back provision. Government
Services has the budget for the purchase of vehicles
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MR. C. MANNESS: Mr. Chairman, with your indulgence
— | hope you don’t rule me out of order — | just want
to make a final comment and a request.

| guess, first of all | would request that the
Government of Manitoba very quickly come to the
support of the Manitoba farmer and the grain
companies that are now dealing with the labour union
in Thunder Bay, the leader of which indicated a few
months ago that their workers should not expect an
increase in salary, and yet it appears that the
membership therein have decided that they should
strike for higher wages.

Unless the members opposite have some ideological
hang-up, | can’t see how anybody can justify today an
increase in salary, handling the product of a large rural
community, who indeed are taking 15 or 25 percent
decrease in their income over the last two years. So
my appeal to the Minister is simply this: the members
opposite quickly realize that they fall in line and support
the farmer of Manitoba with respect to this labour
dispute and | won'’t belabour it, Mr. Chairman.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, before | come to the
defence of anyone, | believe that free and open collective
bargaining does not require anyone to come to the
defence of one party or another. | think the honourable
member is aware — and [I'll just put the other side of
the case in terms of — and | understand where farmers
are coming from. But let it just be on the record that
this is the first year that there’s been a freeze on tariffs
of the grain companies. Grain companies have received
tariff increases year-in and year-out.

MR. C. MANNESS: They haven’t taken them always.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, the honourable
member says, ‘“They haven’t taken them always.” |
don’t know whether they have or they haven’t. They
have been granted increases in tariffs.

| believe the best way to facilitate this matter to its
resolution is for those two parties to work it out at the
bargaining table, not to have the heavy hand of
government saying, “I’'m in support of one or I'm in
support of another’’; but just to say, let the bargaining
process work and facilitate that bargaining process in
a cooperative way, knowing that, and if the workers
strike they are on their own. They do not have this
public support behind them, and that will be settled
very quickly, | can assure the honourable member. But
there is no labour dispute will be settled quickly when
one of those parties knows that he has the full support
of government saying we'’re backing you to the hilt and
to heck with everyone else in the system. That will not
foster good labour relations, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Portage.

MR. E. CONNERY: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to ask
the Minister, he said earlier — we were talking about
research then — that he didn’t want Manitoba to
reinvent the wheel. | agree with that; there is a lot of
technology out there to be used.

In light of the fact that the university grant has only
gone up $25,000 since 1982, would the Minister be a
little easier on allowing outside-of-Canada travel for
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those research people to go to areas to pick up and
to learn the newest in research?

I'll be very specific. In our vegetable speciaiist, we've
had a great deal of difficulty to getting him to
accompany growers on a trip into the production areas
of, say California the one time, that travel is very
restricted, and this is a tremendous opportunity to pick
up the very latest in technology in the horticultural area.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, just for clarification
for my honourable friend, our staff per se in our
department are not directly involved in research. Our
staff would, of course, be involved in getting and
disseminating information on innovative technology and
basically technology transfer. Our research in this
country, basic research, is generally conducted by
Agriculture Canada and that has been their historic
responsibility. Our liaison is to provide some funding
through the university through an annual grant. It’s been
an historic relationship between this department and
the University of Manitoba.

We do, of course, as | indicated the night before,
supplement that as part of our ongoing commitment
to the research area through the university, through
the Agri-Food Agreement that we'’re here, but each
request that comes in is reviewed by the executive in
terms of the extent of travel.

As the member knows, we have, over the last number
of years, reduced and tried to tighten up on the amount
of out-of-province travel. It's still a fairly significant
budget for our department, in the range of $90,000 for
the entire department that is there. Decisions may
sometimes seem arbitrary when requests come in about
travel and, unfortunately, we make those difficult
decisions, some of which in terms of what we feel are
of higher priority are allowed, and some of which we
feel in terms of our financial position are not allowed.

| want to share with my honourabile friend that there’s
no doubt that someone sitting in the field saying well,
damn it, here’s the one annual meeting somewhere,
wherever it may be, outside of Manitoba, and | can’t
go to it. Although we are able to receive a technical
document and the recommendations that come from
that meeting, and put them to use, there is some value
for those people attending, but we have generally tried
to balance that off in terms of having the highest priority
as determined by the executive. That isn’'t an easy
situation, | can assure my honourable friends.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Ste. Rose.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: | guess one of the problems that
| have in going through the Estimates is the general
nature of the Estimates. Obviously, in the Ste. Rose
area forage crops are extremely important as they are,
and probably even more so, in the Minister's home
riding.

| wonder if he could inform us as to the number of
people and the resources that are available regarding
the improvement of forage crop production in this
province. For example, | see that there’s a grassland
specialist and a chief of grassland section. Can he tell
us what the staff complement is in that area and what
their responsibilities are?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, centrally, we have
two technical specialists in this branch. This is the
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central arm of the department, central branch of the
department. Then we have, of course, regional staff in
each region dealing with the specialty areas of forages
and the like; and when you get into the whole area of
demonstrations and working with special groups and
the contracts under Agri-Food, there would be some
term staff and technical staff provided for in those
agreements. So there is no sort of one area of direct
— there is the line responsibility, but they're also
involved in each region so that our specialists in the
region would be involved in the entire region that they
serve whether it’s northwest or central or interlake or
Eastman or southwest. There would be specialists in
those areas as well as the central branch, and the
central branch has two technical people with some term
staff in terms of stenographical. There would be a
pooling of stenographical support as | indicated before.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: The production of forage crops
and forage crop seed production, can the Minister
expand on what the involvement of the department is
in supporting seed production in the province?

HON. B. URUSKI: Forage seed?
MR. G. CUMMINGS: Forage seed, yes, specifically.

HON. B. URUSKI: Yes, Mr. Chairman, | just wanted to
indicate to my honourable friend — and I'll give him
an example just to go back on the monies — in our
budget, for example, in terms of central administration
and work, we had just over $126,000 in the whole area
of forage production investigations. However, in that
whole branch, as the members know, there’s over $3
million. If, in terms of work activity there may have to
be some shift during the year, there is flexibility within
that branch in order to say all right we see that we
can’t do much work in this area, and we have some
projects or work developing in another area of soils
and crops; we can highlight that and move money
around within the branch, within that $3 million figure.
That is normal.

We would need special Cabinet authority if we were
to take money from, | would say the whole division of
agricultural development and marketing, and put it into
say central administration or crop insurance. We could
not do it as a department, but within our own
department we can make use of the funding that's
allocated to that branch. There are wheat districts
grants in there, there are publications, there is land
planning, there is a whole host of areas in that branch
as | indicated the other night.

Forage extension, there is a very strong extension
program to the livestock industry by our department.
In 1985, this program involved over 150 demonstration
and evaluation trials throughout the province. These
trials covered most aspects of forage production and
utilization, including species and variety trials to show
the regional adaptability and yield potential of the
various forage grasses and legumes; sod seeding trials
to demonstrate and evaluate forage establishment
techniques as alternatives to complete renovations;
trials to compare relative yields and forage quality of
annual crops grown for forage; trials to evaluate the
effect of commercially available herbicides in a wide

range of forage crops; demonstrations of commercially
available forage preservatives and anhydrous ammonia
for preventing spoilage in hay; trials to demonstrate
the yield and quality improvements that can be obtained
through soil testing and fertilization; trials to evaluate
and demonstrate the soil salinity tolerance of various
forage crops; trials to evaluate the effect of placing
fertilizer in direct contact with alfalfa during the seeding
operation, and grazing trials to demonstrate economic
production of beef from tame and native pastures.

In addition to the ongoing departmental program,
$1 million over the next five years has been allocated
under the Agri-Food Agreement for forage production
technology transfer. Under this program,
demonstrations will be conducted on improving native
and woodland pasture, improving tame hay and pasture
production, improved forage handling systems and
forage marketing alternatives. Information from these
programs and other sources is transmitted to
Manitoba'’s forage producers through field days, tours,
extension meetings, seminars, media releases, and one-
to-one consultations.

As well, Mr. Chairman, we do have what is known
as the Canadian Forage Seed Project. The project was
established to multiply and distribute foundation seed
of the older Canadian public forage varieties. In 1985,
the province distributed 2,070 kilograms of foundation
forage seed to 77 seed growers. The grower pays full
purchase price for the seed and the only cost to the
province is for administering the project.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: My question would be regarding
probably what would be called communication or it
would be linked, undoubtedly, to the Extension
Department; but my question is, in each of the areas
— we have the Animal Industry Branch, the Veterinary
Services, Soils and Crops, and then we go over to
Technical Services — does each areahave an allocation
that is used for, example, demonstrations and field days,
that is specific to their area, and a fund under which
they could draw to have public meetings? Do those
fall under separate categories or does each section of
this branch have an allocated fund that they can draw
from, or does this come from central administration
funds in the Department of Agriculture?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, the funding for
meetings and information, generally the majority of the
costs of that kind of extension work would be borne
by the regions within their regional budgets. Centrally,
there would be some money, not a great deal of money,
for some extension work and, | guess, information
dissemination; but the bulk of it would be on a regional
basis.

There is a budget within the Agri-Food Agreement
in which all the results and the annualized results that
would be tabulated and provided to as many, first of
all, members of those associations participating in those
trials, as well as communicating through local media
and provincial media in the form of press releases and
the like. There is a budget for that kind of information
dissemination in the Agri-Food Agreement, as well as
for demonstration days and those kinds of activities.

Over the five-year period, in the Agri-Food
Agreement, there is $2.4 million that's allocated for the
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into Rorketon-Toutes Aides District which is in his own
constituency.

Generally, the target was to establish tame forage
on Class 4 and 5 soils in the Rorketon-Toutes Aides
District, specific development within the Lawrence
Cattlemen Cooperative, the increase in establishment
of tame forage acreage and quality of existent tame
forage fields, and to demonstrate economically viable
methods of establishing tame forage on Class 4 and
5 till soils and improvement of existing tame forage
fields.

The budget that was allocated there would provide
for those demonstrations. Within that budget, there
would be some provision for the dissemination of the
technical data that the committee would have collected
in liaison with our ag rep out of the Ste. Rose office.
So they would have some money in that budget for
publications, for technical information that they wish
to put in the paper or disseminate information to their
participants in the cooperative. Hopefully, that
information would go beyond only the members of the
cooperative and into the area. So they would have some
funding within that total project for information and
dissemination.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: | guess that leads to a question
that follows along on that same topic. The programs
that the Minister mentioned, would they by and large
be producer-initiated? Was that what | understood him
to say, or would they in fact be programs whereby the
department would have chosen areas that they felt
should have increased access to this modern technology
and information, and went out and actively promoted
this program in those areas? Which direction is the
flow there?

HON. B. URUSKI: There are a number of types of
projects that we would have funded under this
agreement. There would have been agreements with
individual producer groups. There are agreements with
producer assocations, in particular commodity groups,
and there would be agreements dealing with, for
example, conservation districts that are already
established within the province.

I'd like to advise my honourable friend that, prior to
the agreement being implemented, there was what |
would consider a fairly major, extensive consultation
and planning process for the implementation of this
agreement right across this province, involving | would
say probably hundreds or in the neighbourhood of
hundreds of groups in the Province of Manitoba in all
facets of agriculture. Their views and their ideas were
solicited in terms of possible projects under this
agreement.

For those projects which were approved, there
probably was another half dozen or a dozen projects
which were applied for which the federal-provincial
committee of staff did not agree with. The final
approving authority is a joint committee of federal and
provincial officials in terms of the teams that were
established pursuant to this agreement. But the initial
process of, | would say, grass-roots feedback was a
fairly extensive consultation process with a whole host
of requests which were then considered by the
committee and priorized by the committee.
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As well as groups in the various commodities, we
didn’t as well make all the tough decisions. We threw
some of the tough ones to them as well to say, all right,
if there are 20 requests and maybe we have enough
money to fund five, how about some priorities from
you? Will you at least sit down and say, all right, if you
had this much money, which ones would you do first?
What would be your priority? That's the kind of process
that we were engaged in prior to the finalization of the
actual projects being implemented.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: | would simply ask one more
question along that related area. | was trying to
determine if the department felt that the initiative in
getting these programs started was theirs. Did the
department through the ag reps, was this where the
interest was initiated? How was the information and
the interest created in the areas in order to — part of
my question is: were certain areas delineated by the
department which, | would think, would be quite in
order? Were they delineated by the department as areas
that needed this type of communication?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, the whole process
was, | would say, one of major participation by all
groups. Just for information, we were coming off and
are coming off the previous Agro-Man Agreement, of
which there were a whole host of projects that were
carried on by community groups. There were areas
within those projects that practical research should have
been continued on in some specific areas. Those groups
were involved in the process.

| would say, in terms of the global sense, it was top
down but, in terms of the specifics of the
recommendations, it was really from bottom up. So
while we negotiated the overall agreement in terms of
the global amounts of money, we worked with interest
groups in trying to priorize and determine what projects
would in fact come out in this specific area.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: | would just like to compliment
the department on the Grassland Projects. | think they
have been very worthwhile and have done a good job.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 4.(d)(2)—pass.

4.(d)(3)(a) Northern Development Agreement —
Provincial Salaries; 4.(d)(3)(b) Other Expenditures —
the Member for Ste. Rose.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: The salary referred to here is
that . . .

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, all inclusive of the
staffing and salary that | gave the honourable member
at the beginning of Soils and Crops Branch includes
ths amount of money as well. It’s all within them.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: | was wondering, could he tell
us, is this one staff person.

HON. B. URUSKI: 1.5, I'm advised, Mr. Chairman.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Obviously, for the number of
dollars here, it's quite small compared to other sections,
but | wondered if the Minister could give us some
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MR. CHAIRMAN: 4.(e)1) — the Member for Ste. Rose.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Could | ask the Minister on that
last staff person. Did | hear him correctly; 1 in Home
Economics?

HON. B. URUSKI: Yes, Mr. Chairman. This one person
would be our central support in the financial area. That
position was one that was seconded to the Department
of Health because all our home ecs are in the regions.
They would not show up in any of these budgets. They
would be in the regional budget that is coming up next.
This was strictly central staff. All of the 17 positions
that we have in the department are located in the Farm
and Rural Development Division because they're spread
out throughout the regions.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Under staff complement, we're
talking about the Ag Extension Centre in Brandon. |
picked up that there were 2 in Administration and 9.
Can he expand on what those other positions might
be? Is that service people or is that technical people
that are referred to there?

HON. B. URURSKI: Mr. Chairman, I'm advised that
those staff would be the, | guess what one would call
the Maintenance Staff, the Operating Engineer and the
Cooks in that facility. It would be service to people.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: So then, it would be my
understanding, that mainly there are two people who
are in charge and operate that school, and any courses
that are brought in, the instructors come in with them
at that time? Is that the procedure?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, the majority of
instructors’ fees — and of course, instructors would
be either from the department or outside of government
that would come in — there may be some small amount
within their budgets for some instruction fees, but the
majority of costs for instruction would come from other
budgets. For example, Livestock may want to, or
Forage. Those areas would bring in speakers. That
would be out of their own budgets. And, of course,
covered off to some extent. | guess, in many of them
they’re basically very close to being self-sustaining by
course fees.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for River Heights.

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I'd like to go back to the one home economist who
has been seconded to Health. Is that what you said,
Mr. Minister, and does that mean that Agriculture is
paying for this individual, but the individual is actually
working out of Health?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, we have, in fact, been
paying for that position, but the position that we have
here, in fact, is a vacant position. In the whole review
that is being undertaken, we’'ll be making a decision
as to how the entire services to rural and urban women
will be carried on. That decision will be made likely
within the next two weeks.

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: I'd just like to correct the last
few words. Surely home economists serve more than
rural women.
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HON. B. URUSKI:
say that.

| said both rural and urban. | did

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: But surely they serve more than
women.

HON. B. URUSKI: Yes, Mr. Chairman, they serve the
families of rural Manitoba and urban Manitoba.

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: Thank you. | appreciate that
correction.

I'd like to ask a more general question here. The
Technical Services and Training Branch, while it has a
slight increase for salaries but nothing, quite frankly,
out of line with just regular and normal salary increases,
is overall down a budget of 4.6 percent, with the largest
amount, of course, coming in agricultural societies. Can
you explain the rationale when the budget process was
done that, in fact, resulted in this being given a 4.6
percent decrease?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, in terms of the entire
branch, the staff complement, in fact, there was a slight,
slight increase in the staff complement, not of an entire
person year. Being that there may be some, either
change in staff or new staff, the actual budget for staff
went down by $20,000, | believe, in my own figures
that | have here. | don’t know whether that is reflected
in the final figures in the book, but in terms of our own
staff request, we went down.

Where there was a fairly major difference was in the
budget for the Austin Museum. The Austin Museum
operating budget is now being handled by the Minister
of Heritage and Cultural Affairs. That budget was
removed from this department. It's $123.6 thousand.
It is now, in my mind, in its rightful place, being with
the whole area of museums and culture and heritage
within the province. It's been taken out of our branch
and funded out of another department.

So the decrease is not an actual decrease, it is the
shift of funding from one department to another.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Ste. Rose.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Expanding on the home economic
question and the staff in the Home Economics
Department, there seems to be a fair bit of discussion
and a fair bit of information supposedly flowing from
the government at this point.

There's a good possibility that Home Economics
resource people will go back into the Department of
Agriculture. One of the reasons that | have is that there
is some scepticism that that will in fact happen, is
because of the Estimates and the way that they’re made
up at this point.

If the resource people came back into the Department
of Agriculture, would this be the section under which
their salaries would be funded?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, chances are that
would happen. This would likely be the area that they
might, but | don't want to prejudge what the final
outcome will be. That decision, as | indicated to the
Member from River Heights, will likely be made in the
next couple of weeks.
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MR. G. CUMMINGS: | recognize that my question is
hypothetical. The problem, however, is that if it were
to be transferred to this department, would that mean
that the funding would also be transferred?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, just for my honourable
friend’'s information, this is where they were prior to,
| believe, 1973 or 1974 in this area. | certainly would
assume that when you bring people over, if you bring
them over, that the required funding would change with
the number of personnel in the branch.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Perhaps my next question will
require some research, although it may be readily
available, given that this is so topical this Spring. When
the Home Economics resource personnel were
transferred over did, in fact, at least two of them
continue to be funded under the Department of
Agriculture after they were transferred over to the
Department of Health?

HON. B. URUSKI: I'm assuming that the honourable
member is speaking of the central group.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Uh huh.
HON. B. URUSKI: No, they would not have been.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: Okay. I'm not clear on what the
Minister was referring to after he mentioned the
members of his staff that are in entomology. There was
a staff of two in the next item and it sounded like . . .
I’'m sorry?

HON. B. URUSKI: Bees. Apiary inspection and general.
The inspections would be primarily staff that we would
use on an ongoing basis to do the fumigating of hives,
the service that we provide to the apiarists around the
province, in the ongoing prevention of disease. Basically
the whole apiary section is 3.362, and 1.36. | gave him
the actual breakdown of each area.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: | am now going to do what |
accused the Minister of doing, | would like to jump
back one step again to the home economists’ staff.

The home economists of the province have been
delivering some health care information as well. Is there
a joint funding with the Department of Health where
these programs have overlapped? Can the Minister or
can his staff anticipate continued cooperation in this
area?

If | could expand on my statement. For example, in
prenatal classes, the home economists have been
delivering nutritional courses, which is helping out the
extension work of the Department of Health. Is there
any financial sharing between the departments in that
area, or what are the ramifications, given the possible
changes?

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, | believe there’'s 11
staff in health dealing in the areas of nutrition and
family work; also home ecs both in Northern Manitoba
and in urban centres as well as the 17 staff that we
have on a regional basis.

The central coordinating group would be the resource
group that would provide the resource information and
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material to whatever services the home ecs would be
delivering in the various communities that they would
be serving, whether it's nutrition, whether it’s prenatal,
whether it's farm counselling and farm management,
whether it’s stress, whatever, financial management,
those whole host of services.

In terms of the possibility of the development of
resource material, we said, ‘‘Only you can manage your
money,”’ was developed by, | would think, probably the
resources of the centre but also the expertise of the
field staff. It’s only because there are individuals who
are centrally located, it doesn’t mean that they have
all the answers to all the various areas. They would
still call on field staff to assist them in the preparation
of this material and that would be the way that ongoing
programming and development of resource material
would be undertaken by the department.

There would be occasions, of course, that we might
even hire on a per diem basis some expertise outside
of government to assist, and that has occurred in the
past on some specific projects.

MR. G. CUMMINGS: My concern in this area was that
if the home economists under the Department of
Agriculture were to continue to provide these services
without the central backup, where would the resource
come from? Obviously, at the present time they are
still able to put forward the programs, given the
information that they’ve built up over the years, but
they will rapidly become out of touch if there is not a
central directorate that they can approach.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, that's precisely the
reason for, | would say, the rethinking of the decision
that was originally made. | think honourable members
would appreciate that in the whole Estimates process
in terms of decisions, probably Cabinet ends up likely
making a decision every 10 or 15 seconds in terms of
the whole process. There are times, and this is one of
them, that we really should have rethought the whole
process, and we did.

We recognized that it was not the right decision and
we believe there should be a central coordinating body
in terms of the provision of information and we're
dealing with that presently. That decision will be
implemented, as | said, | hope within the next couple
of weeks.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Kirkfield Park.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: | have a question to the Minister.
At the training workshop that was held, | think it was
around the 3rd of June, where the four home economists
in the directorate weren’t allow to go.

| wonder if the Minister could tell us what kind of
training was given to the rural home economists, when
the Minister had indicated that it was only going to be
dealing with health.

HON. B. URUSKI: Mr. Chairman, | don’'t even want to
pretend to speak for the Department of Health in those
decisions. | think the honourable member should raise
them with the Minister.

In terms of our own staff, we have ongoing updates
and reviews in terms of education throughout the year





























